
 

 

 -1- 

 

 

 

SOUTH BROWARD DRAINAGE DISTRICT 

GOVERNING BOARD MEETING MINUTES 

 
MARCH 27, 2014 

 

Present: 

 
Scott Hodges, Chairperson  Kevin M. Hart, District Director 

James Ryan, Vice Chairperson     Douglas R. Bell, Legal Counsel 

Vicki Minnaugh, Treasurer     Reina Muniz, Recording Secretary 

Robert E. Goggin, IV, Secretary          General Public: See Attached List 

Alanna Mersinger, Commissioner   

Thomas Good, Commissioner       
Mercedes Santana-Woodall, Commissioner 

       

Absent: 

 

---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 

 

01.   CALL TO ORDER/ROLL CALL/PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

 

   Vice Chair Ryan called the SBDD Board Meeting to order at 8:09 A.M.; followed by a roll call 

with Vice Chair Ryan, Commissioner Minnaugh, Commissioner Mersinger, Commissioner Good, 

Commissioner Goggin and Commissioner Santana-Woodall present; and followed by the Pledge of 

Allegiance.    

  

02.   PUBLIC COMMENT  

 
None.  

 

03.   APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

 
Commissioner Minnaugh moved for approval of the minutes of the February 27th, 2014, South 

Broward Drainage District Board meeting.  Motion was seconded by Commissioner Goggin and 

was carried unanimously by the Commissioners present. 

 

04. DIRECTOR=S REPORT  

 
A. PROCLAMATION FOR APRIL AS WATER CONSERVATION MONTH 

 
Commissioner Minnaugh read a Proclamation from SBDD, declaring the month of April as 

“Water Conservation Month”. 
 

Chair Hodges joined the meeting at approximately 8:15 A.M. 

  



 

 

 -2- 

 

B. VARIANCE REQUEST FOR EFREN CASTILLO PROPERTY AT 9831 N.W. 4TH 
STREET, PEMBROKE PINES 
 
District Director Hart stated that the owner of the property located at 9831 NW 4TH Street, 

Pembroke Pines, FL 33024 is requesting a variance from SBDD for the extension of an 

existing shadow-box, wood fence 12 feet into a SBDD Lake Maintenance Easement (LME).  

The shadow-box, wood fence was installed between 2/25/14 and 3/1/14 as a replacement for 

an existing wood fence that was in need of repair/replacement. The property was purchased 

by Mr. Castillo in February, 2005 and is located in the Westview development of Pembroke 

Pines. 

 

Mr. Hart said that at the time the property was purchased there was an existing board-on-

board, wood fence in the same location as the new, shadow-box, wood fence.  However, no 

permit had been obtained by the previous property owner for the fence, and Mr. Castillo was 

not aware that a permit had never been obtained. 

 

On 2/27/14 Mr. Castillo was made aware by the City of Pembroke Pines Code Enforcement 

that a Building Permit was required for the new fence due to the fact that he was replacing 

the wood posts.  Due to safety concerns, the installation of the new fence was completed 

prior to Mr. Castillo obtaining the required permits from the City and SBDD. On 3/6/14 Mr. 

Castillo visited the City’s Building Department and was told that he would also need to 

obtain a permit from SBDD, and on that same day, Mr. Castillo stopped by and met with 

SBDD staff; and was told that the fence did not meet SBDD criteria. 

 

Mr. Castillo met with the Variance Review Committee (VRC) on March 17, 2014 to discuss 

his options and as a follow-up to that meeting the variance request was presented to the 

SBDD Board for consideration.  

 
District Director Hart presented the following points regarding Mr. Castillo’s Variance; 

SBDD Criteria prohibits wooden fences within the LME; Mr. Castillo was not aware that the 

previous fence was not properly permitted; the adjacent property owner has no objection to 

the wood fence as constructed; and there is no HOA in this community.  He said that Mr. 

Castillo was not aware that a new permit was required, and as soon as he was made aware by 

the City, he followed through with the proper course of permitting.  The fence was completed 

before he was able to come before the Board for safety reasons.  If the variance is approved, 

Mr.  Castillo is agreeable to entering into an Indemnification and Hold Harmless Agreement 

with SBDD and paying for all associated legal fees and recording fees. 

 

The requested variance is to allow the extension of an existing shadow-box, wood fence 12 

feet into a SBDD LME.  SBDD staff has no objections to this variance request and there are 

no financial impacts to this Agenda Item.   

 

Commissioner Good made a motion to approve the Variance allowing the extension of an 

existing shadow-box, wood fence 12 feet into a SBDD Lake Maintenance Easement.  

Commissioner Goggin seconded the motion.  

 

Discussion ensued. 

 



 

 

 -3- 

 

Commissioner Mersinger commented that when purchasing a home, a title company usually 

researches any open permits.  She asked why this was not picked up.  Mr. Castillo stated that 

the title company did check for any outstanding permits, and that there was a City permit for 

the fence; however at the time the fence was built the easement area was never an issue, and 

there was never a permit obtained from SBDD.  Commissioner Mersinger opined that Mr. 

Castillo purchased the home in good faith and that the title company said that everything was 

up to snuff; and it was the City that did not inform Mr. Castillo, the first time around, that he 

needed to apply for a permit from SBDD.   

 

Chair Hodges explained that whether or not he needed a permit, he was asked to pull a permit 

because he was replacing the fence and doing structural work.  He was then told by the City 

that he needed to get a permit from SBDD, and Mr. Castillo did not do that, and continued 

installing the fence.   

 

Commissioner Minnaugh commented that she has the same concern.  She said that Mr. 

Castillo knew he needed a permit because he checked back to 2005 to see if there was a 

permit for the original fence.  She said that she would love to allow it, but she cannot; and 

commenced to explain why.  She said that if the District allows this, the mere fact that there 

is no HOA places an onus and responsibility on this District to make sure that the District 

enforces their criteria for lake maintenance easements.  The view is obstructed beyond just 

the adjacent neighbors.  If the District allows this, they will have to do it for everyone.  She 

said that if Mr. Castillo would have come to the District at the beginning, he would have 

been told that he had to have a chain link fence in the lake maintenance easement area.  Mr. 

Castillo said that he did what he thought was adequate research on this.  He was in the 

process of fixing parts of the fence when he was told by the City that since he was digging 

new posts, and although a permit already existed, that he needed a new permit.  

Commissioner Minnaugh stated that the District does not allow wood fences going into the 

LME, and he would have to sign an agreement that if it ever has to come out, or the District 

has to do work, he would responsible for it, but she cannot vote to have him keep that 12’ 

wooden fence inside the easement that obstructs the view to his neighboring homes.   

 

Chair Hodges said that he agreed with Commissioner Minnaugh; that although he 

understands that Mr. Castillo wanted to hurry up and install the fence, if he would have taken 

10 or 15 minutes to come to SBDD, he would have avoided this problem.  

 

Commissioner Good commented that as a home owner in a similar community as Mr. 

Castillo, there is very little guidance on what one should or should not do, when one is trying 

to improve their property; and that he can recognize that.  He said that he appreciates the fact 

that the moment Mr. Castillo was advised, he was actually responsive and responsible to take 

the action that he did.  He said that in his zone this is not uncommon at all, and that taking 

the extra action to get a letter from his neighbor, who would be impacted by the view, saying 

that he was comfortable with that fence being placed where Mr. Castillo placed it, is also a 

plus to Mr. Castillo.  Commissioner Good stated that he believes that the steps that Mr. 

Castillo has taken is the right thing to do and that this is not precedent setting to this Board.  

He said that this is not a permanent structure and, if access was needed, it could be quickly 

demolished.  Also, Mr. Castillo would be signing an indemnification agreement that will not 

hold the District accountable to any destruction to that property; and therefore he is in full 

support of Mr. Castillo’s variance request.  

 



 

 

 -4- 

 

Commissioner Santana-Woodall gathered that Mr. Castillo started repairing the fence before 

he ended up replacing it totally, and that is when he realized that he needed to replace the 

posts and the permit became an issue.   

 

Mr. Castillo reiterated that he was replacing a portion of the fence, mainly the back yard 

portion, because this is an open area and the part that gets compromised during harsh winds; 

and then he decided to continue on the rest of the fence.  He said that he just wanted to 

beautify the property and make the neighborhood look good.  He said that his neighbor has a 

pool and that he has a jacuzzi, and that he had concerns for the safety of the children.  His 

girlfriend has two young children and he has a small dog, and his neighbor has three young 

kids.  He said that he was never told to stop construction.  He was told that he was not in 

trouble; to just go get a permit.   

 

Vice Chair Ryan commented that this type of construction is probably compatible with many 

homes in this area and it does not distract as far as the value of the home.  He said he would 

be in favor of granting this variance.   

 

Commissioner Goggin asked Mr. Castillo if he ever knew that South Broward Drainage 

District existed before this issue came up?  Mr. Castillo replied that he absolutely did.  He 

said that previously he spoke to District Director Hart regarding a canal located on NW 2nd 

Street, off of 98th Avenue and Pines, that had a drainage pipe that was obstructed with trash, 

due to the fact that it is by a shopping center.  He did some research as to who was 

responsible for cleaning it up and within two to three days there was a crew there cleaning it 

up.  He said that until that time he did not know that SBDD existed, and he was very 

impressed with the level of service the District provided.   

 

Commissioner Goggin said that he heard Mr. Castillo mention that there are many different 

type of fences within that community and Commissioner Goggin described the differences 

between a community with an HOA and one without.  He said that when there is an HOA 

everyone follows the law and the rules are set in stone, and they all have the same thing; but 

when there is no HOA, or it is an older community, everyone follows their own rules, and as 

long as the City gives them a permit and places a check mark next to it, everyone moves on.  

He said that he agrees with Commissioner Minnaugh regarding someone who lives in an area 

with an HOA, but when you live in an older community and there is no HOA, then the City 

of Pembroke Pines gives a permit, checks it off, finalizes it, and may never involve SBDD.  

Commissioner Goggin said that Mr. Castillo began to try to make repairs, and is actually 

fixing something that was already in disarray; and is going by guidelines that he is familiar 

with, and due to the fact that the repair got even bigger, the City now requires him to get a 

permit.  He said that most residences in a non-HOA community have no idea that there is this 

whole set of other rules that exist because there is a Drainage District involved.  He said he is 

in favor of fixing and repairing the fence because it existed; and Mr. Castillo was just trying 

to fix a mess. Also the City never involved SBDD before this and he never had a permit 

showing that SBDD sign-off was needed.  

 

After further discussion, Chair Hodges called the question and the motion passed with six in 

favor and one opposed (Chair Hodges). 

 

Commissioner Minnaugh made a motion regarding the Variance, that subject to any transfer 

of the property, the wood fence is to be replaced with a 12’ chain link fence per SBDD 

Criteria.  Commissioner Goggin seconded the motion and it was carried unanimously. 



 

 

 -5- 

 

 
C. VACATION OF DRAINAGE EASEMENT IN A PORTION OF PARCEL ‘A’, 

COUNTRY LAKES NORTHWEST QUADRANT PLAT (AKA – MIRAMAR 
CENTRE BUSINESS PARK – BUILDING B) 

 

District Director Hart stated that South Broward Drainage District (SBDD) received a request 

to vacate a Drainage/Flowage/Storage Easement  - Retention Area (Easement) located within 

the Miramar Centre Business Park – Building B development.  The Easement was previously 

dedicated by separate instrument under OR Book 41547, Page 1255, Broward County 

Records (BCR).   
  

The Easement requested to be vacated is no longer needed as the property owner has 

dedicated new Drainage Easements to SBDD for the drainage system serving the 

development.  The reason for the request is to remove a previously dedicated Easement that 

has been superseded by new DEs.  There are no financial impacts to this Agenda Item and 

SBDD staff has no objection to this vacation request. 

 

Commissioner Minnaugh moved for approval of the vacation of the Drainage Easement in a 

portion of Parcel ‘A’ of the Country Lakes Northwest Quadrant Plat aka – Miramar Centre 

Business Park – Building B property as previously recorded under OR Book 41547, Page 

1255, BCR.  Motion was seconded by Commissioner Goggin and it was carried unanimously. 

 

D. RESOLUTION NO. 2014-01 – REQUIREMENTS FOR LOBBYIST 

REGISTRATION AND REPORTING 
 

District Director Hart stated that Proposed Resolution 2014-01 establishes a requirement for 

all lobbyists to register with the District and to file an annual statement of all lobbying 

activities. The proposed Resolution mirrors Section 11.045, Florida Statutes, Broward 

County Ordinance 2009-34, and Pembroke Pines Ordinance 1712 (aka: 2011-31).   

 

This agenda item was brought up at the last meeting with a request for the District to be 

proactive in requiring lobbyist to register and report.  This is in response to proposed 

legislation under Senate Bill 846; and although it does not really apply to SBDD per say, 

there are similar ordinances in place with Broward County, City of Pembroke Pines and with 

the State that require lobbyist who are going before decision making bodies to register with 

that agency, and to submit annual reports on compensation and the like.   

 

Attorney Bell and District Director Hart put together a proposed Resolution for SBDD that 

would bring SBDD under the same guidelines as the State, County and Municipalities within 

their District.   

 

If approved, this Resolution will require all lobbyists to register with SBDD prior to 

beginning any lobbying activities using the Lobbyist Registration Form and to pay an annual 

registration fee of $40.00.  In addition, each lobbyist will be required to submit an annual 

report disclosing all lobbying expenditures, contingency fees and the sources from which 

making such expenditures and paying such contingency fees have come.  Failure to comply 

with this Resolution may result in a warning, reprimand or suspension from appearing before 

the Board for up to a 2 year period. 

 



 

 

 -6- 

 

District Director Hart stated that Senate Bill 846 which is pending before the 2014-Florida 

Legislature includes a section which requires independent Special Districts that exercise ad 

valorem taxing authority with annual revenues of more than $5,000,000 to create a procedure 

for registration of Lobbyists and to create a registration form. Although SBDD does not 

currently have revenues in excess of $5,000,000 and does not exercise ad valorem taxing 

authority, by implementing this procedure now, SBDD would nonetheless be compliant with 

the proposed language in Senate Bill 846.  

 

This to request approval of Resolution 2014-01 establishing a requirement for Lobbyist 

Registration and Reporting.    

 

Commissioner Minnaugh made a motion to approve Resolution 2014-01 which establishes a 

requirement for all lobbyists to register with the District and to file an annual statement of all 

lobbying activities.  Commissioner Goggin seconded the motion. 

 
Discussion ensued. 
 
Commissioner Mersinger suggested that the District hold-off on this item until after the 
legislative session to see if the bill passes.   
 
Commissioner Good agreed with Commissioner Mersinger.  He also suggested that District 
Director Hart educate the Board members in regard to the ethics issues associated with this 
Resolution should it pass; he said that it is not a simple issue. 
 
Commissioner Mersinger asked Attorney Bell if Senate Bill 846 appears to be going through.  
Attorney Bell replied that presently, there is no House companion bill, and that being the case, 
it may not go through.  Commissioner Mersinger asked if this item could be tabled until after 
May 2nd.   
 
Chair Hodges called the question and the motion to approve Resolution 2014-01 failed by 
unanimous vote.   

 

E. PURCHASE OF NEW DISTRICT VEHICLE – F250 FORD TRUCK 
 

District Director Hart said that SBDD staff has researched pricing for the purchase a new 

vehicle to replace an existing, aging vehicle.  He said that the District needs to replace a 2003 

Ford Ranger truck which has exceeded its useful life span for use by District staff. 

 

This is a request to purchase a new 2014 Ford F-250 4x4 truck with standard cab and trailer 

tow package. The lowest price available for the purchase of a new 2014 Ford F-250 4x4 

truck is through the Florida Sheriff’s Association Contract in the amount of $19,997.00.  The 

Florida Sheriff’s Association Contract was awarded through a publically advertised, 

competitive bid process and therefore, the purchase of the new vehicle through this contract 

does not require SBDD to publically advertise for bids. 

 

SBDD has researched other pricing options, and determined that the pricing through the 

Florida Sheriff’s Association Contract is the most economical option.  Informal pricing 

obtained from other local car/truck dealers exceeded $30,000 in price for the same vehicle. 

 

District Director Hart requested approval for the District to purchase a new 2014 Ford F-250 

4x4 truck from Don Reed Ford under the Florida Sheriff’s Association Contract in the 



 

 

 -7- 

 

amount of $19,997.00.  The vehicle will be outfitted with additional options including 

electric brake controller, LED safety warning lights, an aluminum toolbox, spray on bed 

liner, skid plates, back-up alarm and a two-way radio for use during emergency situations.  

The total cost for the optional items is $3,207.75.  The total cost for the vehicle including all 

optional items will be $23,204.75.   

 

Upon acquisition of the new vehicle, SBDD will utilize the on-line public auction site, Public 

Surplus, to sell the obsolete 2003 Ford Ranger.  That vehicle will be sold “as is” to the 

highest responsible bidder. 

 

The purchase of the new vehicle will be funded through the General Operating Account as 

part of the District’s 2013-2014 budget.   It is estimated that the sale of the District’s surplus 

vehicles will generate approximately $3,000.  

 
Commissioner Goggin moved for approval of the purchase of a new vehicle to replace an 

existing vehicle as submitted.  Motion was seconded by Commissioner Minnaugh. 

 

Commissioner Mersinger asked District Director Hart what methodology the District is using 

to sell the other vehicle.  District Director Hart replied  “an on-line auction”.  He said that the 

District has a series of obsolete items that will be placed on auction at the same time.   

 

Chair Hodges asked District Director Hart if there was any reason to go from a smaller truck 

to a 4x4 truck?  District Director Hart answered that the primary reason is because of the 

hauling of boats and other equipment the District utilizes; and that it is really more useful to 

the District; and it is also a very good price.   

 

Commissioner Good asked District Director Hart what would be the complication of taking 

the blue book value of the old truck and placing it in the Auto Trader?  District Director Hart 

replied that he does not know that there would be any complication.  Commissioner Good 

asked what has been the District’s experience regarding the prices received through the on-

line auction vs. blue book value for that unit?  Is there a consistent pattern that the District is 

receiving less?  He said in his experience, the on-line auction price is much less than the blue 

book value.  He asked if there is a way to get the full residual value on this unit by placing it 

in the Auto Trader based on a blue book value.  District Director Hart said that the last time a 

vehicle was sold, they were very happy with the price that they got from the on-line auction, 

but he will do the research.   

 

Vice Chair Ryan asked District Director Hart if the District would save more money if they 

did financing with zero down with no interest and 16 months to pay?  District Director Hart 

replied that by going through the Florida Sheriff’s bid list the District was able to save 

approximately $10,000.  He said that this is an excellent avenue in which to purchase 

equipment.  He said that although the District can get those financing deals, at the end, the 

additional costs would exceed the savings.   

 

The question was called and it was carried unanimously.  



 

 

 -8- 

 

 

F. UPDATE TO THE DISTRICT’S DRUG FREE WORK PLACE POLICY 

INCLUDING A NEW PROVISION FOR COMMERCIAL DRIVER’S LICENSE 

(CDL) HOLDERS 

 
District Director Hart presented the Board with an update to the District’s Drug Free 

Workplace Policy, including a new provision for Commercial Driver License (CDL) holders 

He said that this came about as a recommendation by the District’s labor attorney.  The 

proposed changes will bring these policies in line with current Florida Statutes and Federal 

and State laws that are applicable to government employees. 

 

The proposed updates are consistent with the District’s current practices and will not result in 

any reductions or changes to SBDD employee benefits.   

 

This is to request approval for an update to the South Broward Drainage District’s Drug Free 

Workplace Policy, including a new provision for Commercial Driver License (CDL) holders. 

 

District Director Hart clarified that everyone will sign the Drug Free Work Place document, 

and if they have a CDL, there is a lengthier form that they will need to sign.  

 

Commissioner Goggin asked District Director Hart if staff that uses the trucks to haul 

equipment are required to have a CDL?  District Director Hart replied that no, that the CDL 

is based on the weight of the vehicles and the towing capacity of the vehicles.  The State has 

guidelines that actually stipulate what those requirements are for CDLs.  Commissioner 

Goggin asked District Director Hart regarding the CDL, does the staff receive any extra 

training or courses?  District Director Hart replied yes; the District has had training here at 

SBDD Headquarters on safety precautions and on how to load and unload a trailer, etc. 

 

Attorney Bell suggested that this Agenda Item be approved by Resolution at the next Board 

meeting.  Chair Hodges agreed, and it was tabled to the next Board meeting of April 24, 

2014. 

 

G. OTHER 
 
  District Director Hart mentioned the following items: 
 

 Water Matters Day – District Director Hart commented that Water Matters Day was very 
well attended.  It set records for attendance through the County.   
 

 Durban Exchange Program and Partnership with South Plantation High School - 
Commissioner Good suggested reaching out to South Plantation High School which the 
District has done.  District Director Hart said that the District hopes to have a nice 
partnership with them moving forward; they are a Magnet School for Environmental 
Engineering and he feels that it is a great fit.  He said that the District invited some of 
their students and their Magnet Coordinator to the Durban Exchange which was hosted 
here at the SBDD Headquarters with a group of Engineers, Emergency Managers and 
Directors from Durban South Africa, to show them how Broward County deals with sea 
level rise, drainage, climate change, water management, emergencies, etc.  There was a 
field trip to the S-8 Pump Station, and a demonstration of how a grapple truck functions.  
It was very nice to have the students present. 
 



 

 

 -9- 

 

 Seminar for Eliminating Unnecessary Flooding on Commercial/Industrial Properties -  
This is a workshop geared towards Property Managers, but is open to anyone interested 
in attending.  This will take place here at SBDD Headquarters on Friday, April 4th, 2014 
from 8:30 to 11:30 a.m. 
 

 SFWMD East Coast Protective Levee Broward County Certification –  District Director 
Hart said the SFWMD has submitted to FEMA their final certification for the East Coast 
Protective Levee.  This is an item that the Board passed a Resolution and sent up to the 
Governor and State Legislature where the District supported continued funding for the 
reinforcement of the levee so that it could be certified.  This is very important when it 
comes to the FEMA flood maps because the maps are based on a fully accredited, 
certified levee, and at the time the maps were updated it was a provisionally accredited 
levee (PAL) and that has now all been completed.   

 

05.   ATTORNEY=S REPORT:  
 

A. UPDATE ON HOT WIRE/PEMBROKE FALLS AGREEMENT 
 

Attorney Bell stated that he is working in coordination with the attorney recommended by 
Commissioner Good on this matter.  He said that the attorney has reviewed the Agreement 
and had some preliminary comments; and that he brought up some good points.  He said 
that the when the City has, for example, Hotwire cable in the City’s right-of-way, the City 
gets money from the State through a Statewide Communications Tax, which the District 
does not.  He suggested that the District include a provision that Hotwire pay a fee just for 
the right to use the easement in the Agreement.  He asked the Board for input. 
 
Commissioner Mersinger asked Attorney Bell, will this be a flat fee or a permit fee?  
Attorney Bell said that they will pay a permit fee, but that this could be like a franchise 
fee.  He said that the outside attorney also suggested that the agreement not be a covenant 
running with the land which is part of most District Agreements, and to make sure that 
they cannot transfer it to someone else.  He said that he will be reviewing this and will 
provide more recommendations. 
 
Commissioner Good said that the amount that the City is getting is in line with the cost 
referenced by Attorney Bell, which is $500 per lineal mile.  He recommended that yes, 
when there is infrastructure or other type of improvements within areas that the District is 
responsible for, there is always that potential where the District has to deal with some 
problem later.  Beyond the element of an annual payment per lineal mile, Attorney Bell 
does need to research this.  He said that if it’s available, he would like include a provision 
that they pay a fee just for the right to use the easement in the agreement.  He brought up 
the topic of bonds.  He said that there is a bond that stays in effect for as long as the 
facility is in existence; for anything that may occur to their system or even abandonment 
of the system.  The other bond is the construction bond or maintenance bond that stays in 
place for one year or two years after construction.  He asked Attorney Bell to consider 
both these bonds and that way the District will be protected from any damages that may 
occur during the construction or failure on restoration efforts afterwards.   
 
Commissioner Goggin asked District Director Hart when was the last time any 
recertification was done at that community?   
 
District Director Hart replied that Pembroke Falls is a huge community and they are in a 
process of obtaining a pod-by-pod 5-year recertification approval.  He said that he would 



 

 

 -10- 

 

look at the Hotwire issue separately, because the District is primarily focused on the 
drainage pipes, and making sure that they are operating properly, in the recertification 
process.  The question regarding the restoration, and making sure that the property owners 
are satisfied with the way their backyards have been restored, and any other issues that 
might come up, should be addressed in the Agreement.  He said that there is a much 
greater likelihood that Hotwire will come back due to issues with the cable; and if that is 
the case, then the District needs to be sure that it is all handled and written into the 
Agreement; and that the responsibility is placed on Hotwire and the HOA to make the 
District aware if they have to go in for repair work, or if the District needs to go in there. 
 
Commissioner Goggin had concerns that the employees of Hotwire enter into these private 
areas without proper identification or notice. 
 
Chair Hodges had concerns on who would be held accountable if, for example, five years 
from now Hotwire goes out of business, and the District has an issue where there is 
erosion, etc.?  Attorney Bell replied that the HOA is responsible; and that the property 
owner is not involved in the agreement at all.  He said that he does have a provision in the 
agreement that the property owner has to be notified and agreeable for someone to go in 
their backyard, so that they cannot just go in and place anything without the homeowner 
being involved in the process.   
 
Chair Hodges said that if, for whatever reason, the District has to do work in the easement, 
the District would want to recuperate that cost from the property owner. 
 
Attorney Bell said that the HOA documents should have a provision that the homeowner 
or the HOA is responsible to restore the lake bank if it collapses.  He said that if the 
District were to have a situation where the lake bank were exposed, the company 
involved, would be responsible there.  That could be a problem because the District would 
have to go back in and restore the easement and make sure the improvements (cable) don’t 
get damaged; and that could get expensive.  Chair Hodges also had concerns regarding 
erosion issues.  He asked what, if for whatever reasons, there was an erosion issue, doesn’t 
the District have to assess the situation?  He said that he wants to make sure that the 
District is covered. 
 
District Director Hart said that this might be a separate issue with Hotwire and the cable.  
He said that if there is an erosion issue on any property within Pembroke Falls, whether or 
not there is cable, it is a decision that has to be made on a case-by-case basis; on who 
would be responsible.  If it is only benefitting that one single property, he believes the 
homeowner would be responsible.  Sometimes the HOA gets involved on behalf of the 
entire community, and if the District took that on, then the District would have to evaluate 
and determine how that would be funded.  He said that as it relates to this issue, the 
District is getting as much control as they can as far as responsibilities and protection 
against the District, in saying that, if anything happens within this LME, the HOA would 
be responsible.  The HOA will be a party to this Agreement.    
 
Chair Hodges has concerns that the District already has these Agreements in place, where 
the HOA is responsible for lake bank maintenance, and it does not seem to hold water; 
and he feels that maybe it would be better to have more bonding rights.   
 
Commissioner Good commented that the District should include a $500 per lineal mile fee 
to be applied on an annual basis so that the District can create an account.  It may not 
mitigate everything, but it helps.  He added that on Commissioner Goggin’s concern 



 

 

 -11- 

 

regarding a notification provision, whether for new construction or repair, within the 
Agreement there should be a provision that allows the District to determine the magnitude 
of that notification and how it is delivered.  That way, the District is better able to ensure 
that those notifications are done properly. 
 
Chair Hodges suggested that Attorney Bell give a draft copy of the Agreement to the 
Board of Commissioners so that the Board can make a better determination as to what the 
Agreement entails. 
 
Commissioner Goggin asked District Director Hart if because Hotwire did all the work 
ahead of time, and did not come to SBDD to ask where culverts were located, did they 
place structures in places where they do not belong?  District Director Hart replied “not 
that he is aware of.”  He said that they have worked with the District very closely to make 
sure that their system is compatible with the District’s facilities and criteria.  
 
Attorney Bell suggested that the annual fee of $500 per mile be added to the Criteria 
Manual.  Chair Hodges agreed.  
 

B. UPDATE ON LEGISLATIVE BILLS 
  
Attorney Bell updated the Board on various pending legislation that may affect Special 
Districts. 
 

06.  APPROVAL OF LEGAL FEES 
 
 Commissioner Minnaugh moved for approval of the legal bills.  Motion was seconded by 

Commissioner Goggin and it was carried unanimously. 

  

07.   BOARD MEMBER’S QUESTIONS/COMMENTS 

   

  None. 

 

08.  MEETING DATE(S) 

 
A. The Next Regular Board Meeting will be held on Thursday, April 24th at 8:00 a.m.  

 

Adjournment at 9:50 A.M.  

 

Respectfully submitted,  

  

 

                                                                             

Robert E. Goggin IV, Secretary 

South Broward Drainage District 

 

 
/rim 


















































































































